
INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND GROWTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

31 December 2018

Dear Councillor

A Meeting of the Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee will be held in 
Committee Room 1 - Marmion House on Wednesday, 9th January, 2019 at 6.00 pm. 
Members of the Committee are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully

Chief Executive

A G E N D A

NON CONFIDENTIAL

1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10)

3 Declarations of Interest 

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (personal and/or 
personal and prejudicial) in any matters which are to be considered at this 
meeting.

When Members are declaring a personal interest or personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of which they have dispensation, they should 
specify the nature of such interest.  Members should leave the room if they 
have a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of which they do not 
have a dispensation.  

4 Update from Chair (Pages 11 - 12)

(To receive an update from the Chair)

Questions attached for reference.

5 Responses to Reports of the Infrastructure Safety & Growth Committee 

(Update on responses received to Reports of the Infrastructure Safety and 
Growth Committee)

6 Considerations of matters referred to the Infrastructure Safety and Growth 
Committee from Cabinet 

(Discussion item)

7 Community Alarm Service Monitoring at Sheltered Housing Schemes 

(Discussion item – Councillor M Cook)

8 Fire Safety Update (Pages 13 - 16)

(Report of the Assistant Director, Assets)

9 2018/19 Forward Plan 

(Discussion item – link to Forward Plan attached)

http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=218&RP=120

10 Infrastructure Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan (Pages 17 - 
18)

(Update and discussion on Infrastructure Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Work Plan)

http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=218&RP=120


People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk 
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting.  We can then endeavour to ensure that any 
particular requirements you may have are catered for.

To Councillors: S Goodall, M Bailey, R Bilcliff, T Clements, J Faulkner, R Kingstone, 
J Oates, M Oates and Dr S Peaple



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND 
GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

HELD ON 23rd OCTOBER 2018

PRESENT: Councillor S Goodall (Chair), Councillors M Bailey, T Clements, 
J Faulkner, R Kingstone, J Oates, M Oates and Dr S Peaple

CABINET: Councillor S Doyle

The following officers were present: Joanne Sands (Assistant Director 
Partnerships), Stephen Lewis (Head of Environmental Health) and Jo Hutchison 
(Democratic and Elections Officer)

16 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Bilcliff

17 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Minutes of the previous Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny 
Committee held on the 13th September 2018 were approved and signed as a 
correct record.

(Moved by Councillor T Clements and seconded by Councillor J Oates)

18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There  were no Declarations of Interest

19 RESPONSES TO REPORTS OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & 
GROWTH COMMITTEE 

The Chair reported that the recommendations from this Committee in respect of 
the Castle Review were considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 27 September 
2018 and endorsed.

20 CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REFERRED TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE 
SAFETY & GROWTH COMMITTEE FROM CABINET 

No matters had been identified for consideration by this Committee.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee

23 October 2018

2

21 2018/19 FORWARD PLAN 

The Chair identified that a new item in respect of the Arrangements for 
Community Alarm Service Monitoring at Sheltered Housing Schemes had been 
added to the Forward Plan for Cabinet decision.  The Committee agreed that it 
should consider this item at its next meeting on 18 December 2018 and that 
accordingly it be added to the Committee’s Work Plan. 

22 PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER - KETTLEBROOK 

The Assistant Director Partnerships reported on the public consultation 
undertaken and the responses received and sought the Committee’s support to 
delegate to the Portfolio Holder the implementation of the new Public Space 
Protection Order for Kettlebrook and the area identified on the map attached to 
the report.

The Assistant Director introduced a representative of the police force who had 
been involved in developing the new Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) and 
at whose request the PSPO had been developed.

The Assistant Director outlined the process which the PSPO had followed, 
including Cabinet approval to go out to consultation and the consultation 
undertaken.  The details of the draft PSPO were highlighted and considered.

It was reported that all sixteen responses received from local residents to the 
consultation by the end of the consultation period on 5 October 2018 had been 
favourable.  It was further reported that a response had highlighted the possibility 
of extending the area covered by the draft PSPO to include McGregor Park and 
the Bolebridge island area. 

It was reported that whilst there was significant evidence of anti-social behaviour 
in the area proposed to be covered in the Kettlebrook PSPO, the areas nearby, 
including McGregor Park and Bolebridge Island, had historically also been 
affected and it was reported that there could be a risk that anti-social behaviour 
would be displaced to nearby areas once any PSPO was implemented.  

RESOLVED that having considered the consultation responses received:

 the draft PSPO for Kettlebrook and the area defined (map attached) be 
endorsed and the delegation to the Portfolio Holder, Communities and 
Partnerships for the implementation of the proposed order be approved;

 a further draft PSPO be brought forward in accordance with the Tamworth 
Community Safety Partnership PSPO Process in respect of  the McGregor 
Park and Bolebridge island area.  It was noted that this would be 
considered by Cabinet prior to any consultation being launched.

(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor J Oates)

Page 6



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee

23 October 2018

3

23 PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER - MOOR LANE 

The Assistant Director Partnerships reported on the public consultation 
undertaken and the responses received and sought the Committee’s support to 
delegate to the Portfolio Holder the implementation of the new Public Space 
Protection Order for Moor Lane / Bolehall and the area identified on the map 
attached to the report.

The Assistant Director introduced a representative of the police force who had 
been involved in developing the new Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) and 
at whose request the PSPO had been developed.

The Assistant Director outlined the process which the PSPO had followed, 
including Cabinet approval to go out to consultation and the consultation 
undertaken.  The details of the draft PSPO were highlighted and considered.

It was reported that responses from local residents in respect of the consultation 
had been favourable. It was further reported that some consultees had responded 
that anti-social behaviour existed in areas beyond the proposed area.  It was 
noted however that the area beyond the footbridge was not as close to residential 
properties and that there was a proportionality requirement to be considered.

RESOLVED that having considered the consultation responses received:

 the draft PSPO for Moor Lane and the area defined (map attached) be 
endorsed and the delegation to the Portfolio Holder, Communities and 
Partnerships for the implementation of the proposed order be approved;

 further work be undertaken to consider whether there was a requirement or 
not for a further draft PSPO to be brought forward for areas adjoining the 
draft PSPO for Moor Lane in accordance with the Tamworth Community 
Safety Partnership PSPO Process and the area (if any) which this could 
cover.  

(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor J Oates)

24 REVISED GAMBLING ACT 2005 STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 

The Committee welcomed the Head of Environmental Health.  It was reported 
that it is a requirement of the Gambling Act 2005 that the Council consults and 
publishes a revised Statement of Principles in respect of the requirements of the 
Act.  

It was reported that the Licensing Committee had considered the revised Policy at 
both its June and October 2018 meetings and that a public consultation had been 
undertaken between those meetings.  Following consideration by this Committee 
the Policy would be taken forward for consideration by Cabinet and approval at 
full Council in December 2018.

The key changes in the Policy were:

Page 7



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee

23 October 2018

4

 To ensure a clear focus on understanding and mitigating gambling related 
harm more broadly, with a focus on protecting the most vulnerable;

 The separation from the Policy of the Council’s risk assessment document 
to enable regular updating of the document as local circumstances 
change. 

The Committee considered the impact that problem gambling had on those 
affected, its impact in particular areas within Tamworth and the lack of research 
available in terms of the impact of gambling on the vulnerable.

RESOLVED That the Committee;

recommended the revised Policy Statement for 
consideration and approval by Cabinet and full Council;

receive further information on the impacts of gambling on 
the vulnerable and the Tamworth context when available.

(Moved by Councillor J Oates and seconded by Councillor Dr S Peaple)

The Committee thanked the Head of Environmental Health for the depth of his 
report, who then left the meeting.

25 S106 UPDATE 

It was agreed that this item had been completed following Councillor Dr S 
Peaple’s Question to Council and the response received from Councillor R 
Pritchard at 11 September 2018 Council meeting. 

26 2018/19 INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORK PLAN 

The Committee received the Committee’s Work Plan.  It was agreed that the 
Staffordshire County Council representative would be invited to address the draft 
Staffordshire plan for Highways when it attended this meeting.  It was agreed that 
the Work Plan be amended as follows:

Page 8



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee

23 October 2018

5

Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan

Chair 

Work Plan 2018 - 2019

DATE SUBJECT
TBC Town Centre Car Parking

18 December Community Alarm Service Monitoring at 
Sheltered Housing Schemes

18 December Tamworth Infrastructure & Roads
 Councillors Goodall and J Oates to 

invite relevant Staffordshire County 
Council representative

 To invite SCC representative to 
address the impact of the draft SCC 
Plan for Highways 

 A list of specific questions to be 
circulated

TBC Review Local & County Plans
TBC Crime Figures for Tamworth
TBC CCTV Usage
TBC Uber – Licensing
TBC People Helping People ( Community Safety)
TBC Street Cleansing (Partnering)
TBC Anti-Social Behaviour Policy

Annual review of Council Tenant Fire Safety

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings

Tuesday 18th December 2018

Tuesday 29th January 2019

Tuesday 2nd April 2019

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Wednesday 9th January 2019 

Tamworth Infrastructure and Roads

Questions

1. What extra road capacity is planned in & around Tamworth to cater for all the extra traffic 
that the thousands of new homes being built will bring. Most of which will be commuting in 
& out of Tamworth every day to add to the already gridlocked roads, especially during the 
rush hours?

2. What money is available each year for Major Road Maintenance?

3. What can be done about the poor standard of road repairs?

4. Can I have a breakdown by electoral division across Tamworth of the following:
 No of potholes fixed for 2015, 2016, 2017 for each of the Tamworth divisions
 Average time taken for a visit to each pothole by an inspector to take place across 

each division for 2015, 2016, 2017
 Average time for a pothole to be repaired (not temporary) by division for the three 

years given above

5. Are the county council happy with the time taken for inspectors to visit the site of reported 
road defects?

6. When roadworks are taking place we often see traffic lights either erected or left in situ for a 
day or so pre or post the commencement of works. I appreciate that most works are not 
directly controlled by the county council but what enforcement policy is in place to ensure 
contractors do not hinder the public unnecessarily? 

7. Following on from this, can we see some regulation/policy with regard to roadworks over a 
weekend? If it is safe to do so can works be removed, temporarily?

8. Similar to the above, is there a policy in place to ensure contractors communicate effectively 
with residents prior to works taking place?

9. When contractors complete any necessary works often they leave the site in an dreadful 
mess and do not put back verges, landscaped areas to an appropriate standard. Likewise, 
often signs, sandbags etc are left. Can some sort of enforcement action or ‘minimum 
standards’ be put in place?

10. Similarly, we have landscaped/block paved areas of the town where contractors have carried 
out works and not made good the area to the same standard it was before. What 
enforcement action to ensure high standards are maintained is in force.

11. What process is followed with regard to allocating budgets for each area / year during the 
period of the MTFS?

12. How are members involved in the planning of the works to be undertaken?

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



IS&G Scrutiny Committee
Wednesday 9th January 2019

Fire Safety update

On 19th October 2017 Cabinet approved the ‘Council Tenants Fire Safety 
Policy 2017-2020’ along with the policy an action plan and resident 
information documents were published; furthermore it was agreed that there 
would be an annual review of fire safety by the Scrutiny Committee.

Fire safety has been high on the agenda within the retained housing property 
portfolio for some considerable time with annual Fire Risk Assessments 
having being conducted along with regular ongoing safety checks and the 
actioning of safety related repairs being integral to service delivery. However 
in the aftermath of the Grenfell fire further measures were implemented to 
bolster the existing arrangements.

Since the implementation of the current policy and action plans there have 
been no fires within the high-rise blocks and no injuries from fires within any of 
the Council retained stock.

The action plan set out in the Cabinet report included the following items

Action Progress
Successfully re-procure third party 
auditors to continue the approach to
Fire Risk Assessments

Graham Environmental Services 
successfully tendered for the 
Council’s compliance contract and 
having being the incumbent supplier.

Graham’s have completed the annual 
Fire Risk Assessments for those 
properties requiring them (this 
extends beyond High Rise).

There is an ongoing regime of checks 
within the High Rise with repairs 
being actioned on an ongoing basis. 
Common themes are repairs to doors 
and re-installation of door closers 
suggesting that residents need to be 
kept informed as to the importance of 
not interfering with fire safety 
measures.

Re-procure home fire safety service, 
currently delivered by SFARs, to
ensure this service continues

Staffordshire Fire & Rescue continue 
to provide Home Fire Safety services 
to residencies in Tamworth.

Install and develop guidance around 
sprinkler suppression systems
planned for the high rise blocks

Work on the installation of sprinklers 
is due to commence in January 2019 
with the contract having being 
awarded to Lovell. The Council and 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



Lovell will be working closely with 
Staffordshire Fire &Rescue to ensure 
that the sprinklers provide the highest 
possible level of coverage for the 
residents.

Develop a training and competency 
framework for landlord service
aligned to roles and responsibilities 
around fire safety

This is an ongoing process and will 
be developing in line with the 
outcomes of the Dame Judith Hackitt 
report into the Grenfell Fire.

A document released by Government 
in December 2018 indicates that 
there are likely to be significant 
changes in the way high rise blocks 
need be managed in respect of fire 
safety with there most likely being a 
requirement to have designated duty 
holders with relevant competencies.

Development of mobility scooter 
guidance and policy that conforms to
fire safety standards

Scooter guidance specifically relating 
to the fire implications was released 
to all residents and is published on 
the website. Further guidance is 
being developed in relation to the 
high-rise blocks although this is 
unlikely to impact on fire safety.

Develop the councils web site to allow 
for the public production of redacted 
FRA – so tenants and residents can 
view on line and actions
can be monitored

Fire Risk Assessments are not yet 
published on the website; this is an 
action that will be carried forward for 
implementation in 2019.

Undertake routine electrical testing in 
residential dwellings.

Budget has been allocated for routine 
electrical safety checks and this work 
is underway on a rolling programme 
with Wates. Corrective actions are 
being dealt with as an when 
identified.

Sprinklers – overcoming the technical issues around water supply has 
resulted in delays in awarding the sprinkler contract. Lovells have now been 
appointed by the Council to undertake this work and will commence with the 
installation process in January 2019 with works due to be completed by 
December 2019.

As part of the wider improvements to the high rise blocks there had been 
plans to renew all flat doors, however testing of products following Grenfell 
has meant many manufacturers withdrawing their fire doors from the market. 
We still hope to upgrade the doors in the blocks but this will only happen once 
we have assurances that the doors available have met the required standards 
for fire safety.

Page 14



Late in December 2018 the Government released a document titled “Building 
a Safer Future, An Implementation Plan”. This document addresses many of 
the issues and recommendations arising from the Dame Judith Hackitt report 
into the Grenfell fire. This is likely to lead to a much more robust legislative 
framework for fire safety that will place more obligations on the Council in its 
role as a landlord and may also impact on the Council in other roles such as 
Building Control and Housing Enforcement. The legislative framework is likely 
to require much greater engagement, involvement and co-operation with 
tenants and leaseholders. Once the exact implications of this review are 
understood a further report will be brought forward.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan

Work Plan 2018 - 2019

DATE SUBJECT
9 January Community Alarm Service Monitoring at 

Sheltered Housing Schemes
9 January Annual Review of Fire Safety
9 January Tamworth Infrastructure & Roads

 Councillors Goodall and J Oates to 
invite relevant Staffordshire Count 
Council representative

 To invite SCC Representative to 
address the impact of the draft SCC 
Plan for Highways

 A list of specific questions to be 
circulated

29 January Castle update - interim
TBC – 2 April Additional PSPOs

TBC Review Local & County Plans
TBC Crime Figures for Tamworth
TBC CCTV Usage
TBC Uber – Licensing
TBC People Helping People ( Community Safety)
TBC Street Cleansing (Partnering)
TBC Anti-Social Behaviour Policy
TBC Town Centre Car Parking

September 2019 Castle –12 month review

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings

Wednesday 9th January 2019

Tuesday 29th January 2019

Tuesday 2nd April 2019

Page 17

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Update from Chair
	8 Fire Safety Update
	10 Infrastructure Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan

